
 
Planning Board 

Meeting Agenda 
 

September 16, 2014 at 7:00pm 
Council Chambers, 201 S Main St 

Meeting Called to Order, Invocation, and Overview of Board and general meeting rules 

1. Public comment on non-agenda items 

2. Approve minutes of the August 19, 2014 meeting 

3. Committee Reports 

4. Old Business 

5. New Business 

a. Wendy’s at Kourescent (SUP8301). Request by Chris Clayton of Commercial Site Design for an 
amendment to the Special Use Permit for a Unified Business Development for property located at 
835 S Main St (GPIN 8883195723 & 8883195412). 

Adjourn 

A complete agenda packet is available at www.cityofgraham.com 



516    

    
  

PLANNING ZONING BOARD 
Tuesday, August 19, 2014 

 
The Planning & Zoning Board held their regular meeting on Tuesday, August 19, 2014 in the Council Chambers 
of the Graham Municipal Building at 7:00 p.m. Board members present were Ricky Hall, Bill Teer, Andy 
Rumley, Dean Ward, Michael Benesch, and Bonnie Blalock. Tim Beshel was absent. Staff members present 
were Melissa Guilbeau, City Planner and Martha Johnson, Zoning/Inspections Technician. 
 
Chairman Andy Rumley called the meeting to order and explained the function of the Board. 
 
Invocation was given by Ricky Hall.   
 
1. Approve minutes of the July 15, 2014 meeting.  Bonnie Blalock made a motion to approve, second by Ricky 
Hall.  All voted in favor.  
 
2. 910 Washington Industrial (RZ1406). The request by Hernan Alas was continued from the last meeting to 
rezone property located at 910 Washington St. from B-3 to I-1. Oscar Santana of 1720 Berkley Rd, Burlington, 
NC spoke for Mr. Alas. Mr. Rumley asked if they had discussed changing the request to Conditional Business. 
Ms. Guilbeau stated she tried to contact them by email but got no response. Mr. Rumley said that last month’s 
discussion was that Conditional Business would be a better fit and they had been asked if they would amend 
their proposal. Dean Ward said we are currently where we were a month ago when it was tabled. Ricky Hall 
recommended denial because it doesn’t meet the definition that the Board wants, second by Michael Benesch. 
All voted for denial 6 to 0. Mr. Rumley told the applicant to take some time during the coming week and speak 
with the Planner. 
 
3. Woodard General Business (RZ1407). Request by Donald Woodard to rezone property adjacent to 
307 S Marshall St from R-7 to B-2. Ms. Guilbeau said the stated reason for the request is to install a rear drive 
for Woodard Eye Care. Jimmy Collins of 5556 Friendship Patterson Mill Rd spoke representing Mr. Woodard. 
Mr. Collins said Mr. Woodard had a lot combination done to put a 20’ rear entrance in so customers could exist 
on to S Marshall St. Dean Ward made a motion to approve, second by Bonnie Blalock. All voted aye.  
 
4. Grace Bible Multifamily (RZ1408). Request by Rev. Ken Harmon to rezone property located on Ivey Rd from 
R-18 & I-1 to R-MF. The stated reason for the rezoning was to reflect the City of Graham Growth Management 
Plan. No one was present to represent the applicant. Mr. Tom Ernest of 817 Ivey Rd spoke expressing his 
concerns about changing the zoning that could lead to many more things which could happen at that location. 
Mr. Ernest said he was in favor of houses going there but no businesses or apartments. Mr. Ernest also read a 
note to the Board from Jean Ezzell of Ivey Rd who was currently out of town expressing similar concerns with 
the rezoning. Also Betty Jenks of 811 Ivey Rd spoke in opposition to the rezoning, saying she would be glad to 
see houses there but not apartments. Ms. Jenks talked about the school traffic issues currently on Ivey Rd with 
the schools full now and apartments would be too much for that area.  
 
Dean Ward was concerned that the applicant was not at the meeting to answer questions and not sure if 
apartments would be the right fit. Ms. Blalock agreed with Mr. Ward and said she would like to know what the 
owner had in mind because he didn’t state exactly what he was doing and the neighbors do have a valid point 
about being overrun by apartments in that area. Mr. Benesch had concerns with no one there to answer questions 
and Mr. Hall agrees with them. Mr. Hall said if we pass this it will be giving them a “blank check” to put 
anything out there. Mr. Rumley agreed with the other Board members along with not having any knowledge of 
the use intended. Ricky Hall made a motion to recommend denial of this application, Michael Benesch 
seconded. All voted for denial 6 to 0. 



517 
 
5. Text Amendment for Historic Resources. Request by staff to amend the Development Ordinance related to 
historic resources.  Ms. Guilbeau said the changes were in Article IV, Divisions 9 & 10. Ms. Guilbeau said it 
would provide that the Commission designate local landmarks, to update and organize, and to modify to make it 
easier to understand. Ms. Guilbeau said they also looked at becoming a Certified Local Government (CLG). The 
state of North Carolina can designate you as such and it gives you additional resources, assistance and grant 
opportunities. We are currently doing most of the things that make you a CLG so we made sure that anything we 
were proposing would allow us to be a CLG. Ms. Guilbeau said the major highlights to what was changing was 
the name of the Historic District Commission would change to Historic Resources Commission, set up regular 
dates for meetings, procedures for designating historic districts and historic landmarks, and a lot of updating and 
reorganization. Ms. Guilbeau said the Commission endorsed the idea of reducing the members from 9 to 7. 
Ricky Hall made a motion to approve the text amendment as written with changing the number of Board 
members from 9 to 7, second by Dean Ward. All voted aye.  
 
6. Rules of Procedures. Ms. Guilbeau stated that this was given to the Board at last month’s meeting and there 
have been no new changes. Ricky Hall made a motion to adopt the Rules of Procedure, Dean Ward seconded. 
All voted aye. 
 
Bonnie Blalock asked about the status of the old Nicks Building in Court Square concerning the steps falling on 
the side of the building facing the Courthouse. Ms. Guilbeau said she wasn’t sure but could speak to James 
Lloyd, Chief Code Enforcement Officer, about the situation. Mr. Benesch was concerned about the liability to 
the City of Graham if anything was to happen. Ms. Guilbeau stated she would speak to both Mr. Lloyd and 
Frankie Maness about this. Mr. Teer felt like this was an “eye sore” to visitors coming to our City.  
 
Andy Rumley had some concerns about the downtown area since the Carver’s restaurant burned down. 
Mr. Rumley would like for the City of Graham to take on a more active role in the redevelopment of our 
downtown area. Mr. Rumley wasn’t sure if this would be a function of this Board and it may not be something 
City Council can do but we would like to hear input from city staff, Frankie Maness or anyone who has a valid 
point. The Board agreed and thanked Mr. Rumley for his input concerning this matter. 
 
No further business the meeting was adjourned. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
Martha Johnson 
Inspections/Zoning Technician 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Melissa Guilbeau, City Planner 

Wendy’s at Kourescent (SUP8301) 

Type of Request: Special Use Permit 
amendment 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on September 16, 2014 
City Council on October 7, 2014 

Contact Information 
Chris Clayton, Commercial Site Design 
8312 Creedmoor Rd, Raleigh, NC 27613 
(919) 848-6121; clayton@csitedesign.com 
 

Summary 
This is a request to amend the Special Use Permit for a Unified 
Business Development currently known as Kourescent Square, 
located on S Main St, W Crescent Square Dr and Auto Park Dr. 
Specifically, the proposal is to demolish and rebuild the Wendy’s 
restaurant located at 835 S Main St. 

The Special Use Permit for this shopping center was approved on 
October 4, 1983 and included a site plan. Because that site plan 
has been lost, an amendment to the Special Use Permit is needed 
in order to change the site layout of the Wendy’s restaurant. 

 

Location 
835 S Main St 

GPIN: 8883195723 & 8883195412 

Proposed Special Use 
amendment for  

Unified Business Development 

Current Zoning 
General Business (B-2) 

Overlay District 
Hwy 87/S Main St 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-18, R-7, R-12, R-MF,  

O-I, B-2 & I-1 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Single Family Houses, Multifamily, 

Offices & General Businesses 

Public Water & Sewer 
Yes 

Floodplain 
No 

Staff Recommendation 
Approval, with condition 



Staff Report, Wendy’s at Kourescent (SUP8301) Page 2 of 5 
Planning Board on September 16, 2014 

A preliminary site plan was submitted as part of the application. The proposal is to demolish the existing 
Wendy’s building and parking and construct a new building and site improvements as shown on the 
preliminary site plan. Major changes compared to the existing site include rotating the building by 
ninety-degrees so that the building faces S Main St with the drive-thru on the side near W Crescent 
Square Dr, and controlled access between the Wendy’s site and the rest of the shopping center parking 
lot. 

 

Technical Review Committee 
The TRC reviewed the preliminary site plan and met with the applicant on September 2, 2014. As of the 
writing of this staff report, a revised preliminary site plan has not been submitted. The following TRC 
comments impact the preliminary site plan: 

• Provide a sidewalk along S Main St and W Crescent Square Dr, and from the public sidewalk to the 
building. 

• Consider reducing the number of parking spaces considering the City’s minimum requirement and 
the parking available in the shared shopping center lot. 

• Recommend not providing the driveway that is shown closest to S Main St; it is too close to the main 
access driveway from S Main St. 

 
 
 



Staff Report, Wendy’s at Kourescent (SUP8301) Page 3 of 5 
Planning Board on September 16, 2014 

Conformity to the Growth Management Plan (GMP) and Other Adopted Plans 
Applicable Goals to Guide Us into the Future 

• 6.2.1. Reduce and restrict the number of curb cuts and 
driveways along major arterials. The proposal uses existing 
driveways and does not create any new driveways along 
S Main St or W Crescent Square Dr. 

• 6.3.2. Encourage commercial development within designated 
village centers as opposed to continued commercial strip 
development. This commercial development is an 
amendment to a Special Use Permit for a unified business 
development that was approved in 1983. 

Applicable Planning District Policies and Recommendations 

• 7.4.4.1.2. Limit direct highway access or the number of curb 
cuts to commercial activities by directing development to 
proposed regional and village centers and requiring internal 
connectivity between commercial uses, as well as uniformity 
in design standards. The proposal uses existing driveways 
and does not create any new driveways along S Main St or W 
Crescent Square Dr. 

Graham Pedestrian Plan 

• Recommends a five-foot sidewalk on this section of S Main St 
as the third highest priority project. A sidewalk along both  
S Main St and W Crescent Square Dr are required by the Development Ordinance. 

DRAFT Findings of Fact and Conclusions 
In granting a special use permit, the City Council shall find that all of the six conditions listed below have 
been met, or it shall be denied. Staff has prepared the following DRAFT findings of fact for each of the 
six conditions. These findings should be modified by the Council as it considers its decision. 

1. All applicable regulations of the zoning district in which the use is proposed are complied with. 
The property is zoned B-2 and Highway 87/S Main St Overlay. “Unified Business Development” is 
permitted in the B-2 zoning district with a Special Use Permit and is not prohibited in the overlay 
district. The proposed development meets the area, height and yard regulations. Signs will require a 
sign permit. The proposed development complies with the site standards of the overlay district, with 
the exception of providing a sidewalk. All other standards specific to the overlay district will be 
complied with prior before a building permit is issued. 

2. Conditions specific to each use, identified by the Development Ordinance, are complied with. 
The following requirements are specific to this use: 
o Such developments shall abut a major thoroughfare, minor arterial, or collector street (existing or 

proposed). This existing Unified Business Development abuts NC 87/S Main St, which is a major 
thoroughfare. 

Planning District 
Central 

Development Type 
Highway Commercial 

Located near a major 
thoroughfare 

For commercial and 
office/institutional 

Characteristics include  
automobile-oriented; design 

requirements; sidewalks;  
street trees; landscaping; 

buffering/screening; parking 
provided on-site; height of 

structures regulated; controlled 
access; building orientation 

10,001 to 100,000sf of retail 

Infrastructure includes water, 
sewer, street connectivity and 

underground utilities 



Staff Report, Wendy’s at Kourescent (SUP8301) Page 4 of 5 
Planning Board on September 16, 2014 

o All uses permitted in the B-2 district are permitted in a Unified Business Development, with the 
exception of certain uses which are not permitted. Restaurants (with drive-thru) are permitted in 
the B-2 district and are not prohibited in a Unified Business Development. 

o Drive-in establishments offering goods or services directly to customers in parked cars shall be 
permitted only when the locations of the buildings and access drives have been approved by the 
city council. This proposal includes a drive-thru restaurant, which is seeking the approval of City 
Council. 

o All business establishments shall be retail or service establishments dealing directly with the public. 
The proposed drive-thru restaurant directly serves the public. 

o All uses shall be completely enclosed in buildings except for plant sales, sidewalk cafes, and 
permitted drive-in uses. The proposed restaurant is completely enclosed. 

o An opaque screen shall be provided wherever, in the city council’s judgment, such screening is 
necessary to shield adjacent residential districts. There are no adjacent residential districts that 
would require screening. 

3. The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed and 
developed according to the plan as submitted. 
The proposed restaurant with drive-thru, to be located within an existing Unified Business 
Development, will not materially endanger the public health or safety. 

4. The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining property or that the use is a public 
necessity. 
The proposed restaurant with drive-thru, to be located within an existing Unified Business 
Development, will not substantially injure the value of adjoining property. 

5. The location and character of the use if developed according to the plan as submitted will be in 
harmony with the area in which it is to be located and in general conformity with the plan of 
development for the Graham planning area. 
The proposed restaurant with drive-thru, to be located within an existing Unified Business 
Development, is a commercial use that will be located in an existing highway commercial corridor 
and is in general conformity with the Growth Management Plan 2000-2020. 

6. Satisfactory provision has been made for the following, when applicable: vehicle circulation, parking 
and loading, service entrances and areas, screening, utilities, signs and lighting, and open space. 
Satisfactory provision has been made for vehicle circulation, parking, service entrances and areas, 
utilities, and lighting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Staff Report, Wendy’s at Kourescent (SUP8301) Page 5 of 5 
Planning Board on September 16, 2014 

Staff Recommendation 
Based on the Growth Management Plan 2000-2020 and the City of Graham Development Ordinance, 
staff recommends approval of the Special Use Permit amendment, with the following condition: 

• All TRC comments shall be addressed to the satisfaction of the TRC. 

The following supports this recommendation: 

• The development furthers goals of the Growth Management Plan and is in conformance with the 
Highway Commercial development type. 

• The development complies with the standards of the Development Ordinance. 

• The development, once the preliminary site plan is revised to include a sidewalk along S Main St and 
W Crescent Square Dr, will meet all six conditions required by Section 10.144 of the Development 
Ordinance. 













PLANNING BOARD 
Recommendation & Statement of Consistency 

Per NCGS 160A-383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. The Planning Board shall advise and comment on 
whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the “City of Graham 
Growth Management Plan 2000-2020” and any other officially adopted 
plan that is applicable. The Planning Board shall provide a written 
recommendation to the City Council that addresses plan consistency and 
other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a 
comment by the Planning Board that a proposed amendment is 
inconsistent with the “City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020” shall not preclude consideration or approval of the proposed 
amendment by the City Council. 

 

 I move to recommend APPROVAL of the application as presented. 

 I move to recommend APPROVAL with the following conditions: 

o [Insert additional or other conditions] 

 I move to recommend DENIAL. 

 
 The application is consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-2020. 

 The application is not fully consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-2020. 

 

This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the 16th day of September, 2014. 

Attest: 

  
Andy Rumley, Planning Board Chairman 

  
Martha Johnson, Secretary 

Wendy’s at Kourescent  
(SUP8301) 

Type of Request 
Special Use Permit amendment 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on September 16, 2014 

City Council on October 7, 2014 


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of 8/19/2014 meeting
	5a. Wendy's at Kourescent (SUP8301) 

